UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-7-2009

Castorena v. General Elec. Appellant's Brief Dckt. 35123

Statement of the Issuesvi
Statement of the Case
A. The Nature of the Casevii
B. The Course of the Proceedingsviii
1. The Castorena Motion for Summary Judgment and Orderviii
2. The Adamson Motion for Summary Judgment and Orderxi
C. Statement of Factsxii
Standard of Reviewxv
Statement of the Issues1
I. The Trial Courts Erred in Granting the Defendants' Motions for Summary Judgment on the Statute of Limitations in the Wrongful Death Claims
A. The Trial Courts Erred in Concluding that the Condition Precedent Rule Must Be Read Into the Wrongful Death Statute
1. The trial courts' equivocal orders should be reversed1
2. The condition precedent rule does not square with the plain language of Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute nor with this Court's clear holding in <i>Chapman</i> that a wrongful death cause of action accrues on the date of death
3. This Court unequivocally holds, relying upon the plain language of the wrongful death statute, that a cause of action for wrongful death accrues on the death of the injured party, and not before
4. Idaho's wrongful death action is a separate statutory cause of action11
B. It Is Err to Presume That This Court Would Apply the Condition Precedent Rule to a Wrongful Death Claim
II. The Trial Courts' Rulings Deprive Idaho Citizens of Constitutional Rights
Conclusion21

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Cases

 Adams v. Armstrong World Indus., Inc., 596 F. Supp. 1407 (D. Idaho 1984), appealed sub nom, Waters v. Armstrong World Indus., Inc., 773 F.2d 248 (9th Cir. 1985), aff'd in part, rev'd in part, 790 F.2d 893 (9th Cir.1986) after remand, 664 F.Supp. 463 (D.Idaho 1987), judgment on limitations vacated on other grounds 847 F.2d 589 (9th Cir.1988)
Albee v. Judy, 136 Idaho 226, 31 P.3d 248 (2001)
Bevan v. Vassar Farms, Inc., 117 Idaho 1038, 793 P.2d 711 (1990)
Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc., 105 Idaho 785, 673 P.2d 385 (1983) passim
Day v. Day, 12 Idaho 556, 86 P. 531 (1906)
Evans v. Twin Falls County, 118 Idaho 210, 796 P.2d 87 (1990)
Harris v. State Dept. of Health & Welfare, 123 Idaho 295, 847 P.2d 1156 (1992) xv
Hayward v. Valley Vista Care Corp., 136 Idaho 342, 33 P.3d 816 (2001)
Helgeson v. Powell, 54 Idaho 667, 34 P.2d 957 (1934)16
Hogan v. Hermann, 101 Idaho 893, 623 P.2d 900 (1980)9
Moon v. Bullock, 65 Idaho 594, 151 P.2d 765 (1944)
Payette River Property Owners Ass'n v. Board of Com'rs of Valley County, 132 Idaho 551, 976 P.2d 477 (Idaho 1999)
Rook v. Trout, 113 Idaho 652, 747 P.2d 61 (1987)
Russell v. Cox, 148 P.2d 221 (1944)
Sacred Heart Med. Ctr. V. Boundary County, 138 Idaho 534, 66 P.3d 238(2003).xv
Sprouse v. Magee, 46 Idaho 622, 269 P. 993 (1928)
State v. Burnight, 132 Idaho 654, 978 P.2d 214 (1999)7

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

I. Whether the Trial Courts Erred in Granting the Defendants' Motions for Summary Judgment on the Statute of Limitations in the Wrongful Death Claims.

II. Whether the Trial Courts' Rulings Deprive Idaho Citizens of Constitutional Rights.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. The Nature of the Case.

In this consolidated appeal from two orders by two trial courts granting summary judgment on the statute of limitations, the facts are not in dispute. Wrongful death actions were brought by the heirs of John D. Stoor, Robert Branch, Jr., William D. Frasure and John H. Adamson asserting that as a result of continuous exposure to defendants' asbestos-containing materials and products each contracted asbestos-related diseases and subsequently died from those diseases.¹ The plaintiffs in each case filed suit alleging, among other causes of action, wrongful death claims. Each lawsuit was filed within two years following the date of the decedent's death although the decedents' were diagnosed with the injuries causing death more than two years prior to filing suit. In motions for summary judgment in each case, the defendants contended that the decedents had no causes of action at the time of their deaths because, based on the application of the condition precedent rule, their personal injury causes of action had expired more than two years before they died. Plaintiffs contended that, based on the plain language of Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute as well as a clear pronouncement from this Court in Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc., 105 Idaho 785, 673 P.2d 385 (Idaho 1983), a cause of action for wrongful death accrues on the death of the

¹ John D. Stoor, Robert Branch, Jr., William D. Frasure and John H. Adamson are referred to in this brief as "decedents."

injured party. Ultimately both trial courts granted the defendants' motions for summary judgment having found that the plaintiffs' wrongful death causes of action were barred by the statute of limitations.

B. The Course of the Proceedings.

1. The Castorena Motion for Summary Judgment and Order.

On June 2, 2006, Civil Action CV-26-2474 styled Mildred Castorena, et al. v. General Electric, et al., was filed in the Sixth Judicial District Court of Bannock County, Idaho. (R. Vol. I, 87-123).² The lawsuit was brought by a number of plaintiffs including, for purposes of this appeal, appellants Allene Stoor, individually and as spouse and personal representative of the Estate of John D. Stoor ("Stoor"), Stephanie Branch, individually and as personal representative of the Estate of Robert Branch, Jr. ("Branch") and Marlene Kisling, individually and as personal representative of the Estate of William D. Frasure ("Frasure").³ All personal representatives were citizens and residents of the state of Idaho. (R. Vol. Plaintiffs, pursuant to the Idaho Wrongful Death Act, sued numerous I, 89). defendant corporations who either manufactured or sold asbestos-containing products in Idaho asserting that exposure to asbestos caused injury and death to Stoor, Branch and Frasure. (R. Vol. I, 87-123).

² References to "R. Vol. ____" are to the volume and page number of the record prepared by the court clerk. References to "App. Ex. ____" are to documents included in the Appendix attached to this brief.

³ These personal representatives of the respective estates, along with John D. Adamson, are referred to in this brief as "plaintiffs."

Defendants Ingersoll-Rand and Westinghouse filed motions for summary judgment on November 9, 2007, seeking to dismiss the cases filed by the personal representatives of decedents, John D. Stoor, Robert Branch, Jr. and William D. Frasure. (R. Vol. V, 1110-1112) (R. Vol. V, 1128-1131) (R. Vol. V, 1137-1139). The basic premise of the defendants' motions for summary judgment was the Stoor, Branch and Frasure had objective proof of their injuries from same: exposure to asbestos more than two years prior to the dates of their deaths so their wrongful death causes of action, filed within two years of the date of death but more than two years after diagnosis, were barred by the statute of limitations because of the application of the condition precedent rule to Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute. (R. Vol. V., 1147). Sterling Fluid Systems (USA), LLC, along with the majority of the other defendants, filed a joinder to Westinghouse and Ingersall-Rand's motion. (R. Vol. VI, 1494). After oral argument on December 10, 2007, the trial court issued a January 28, 2008 memorandum decision and order that denied the defendants' motions for summary judgment regarding the wrongful death claims. (R. Vol. VI, 1494). (App. Ex. "A").⁴ The court found that the language of I.C. § 5-311, the wrongful death statute, was "plain and unambiguous" and did not contain "condition precedent" language found in other wrongful death

⁴ The plaintiffs filed a motion to augment the record with this January 28, 2008 *Memorandum Decision and Order* that was omitted from the clerk's record. The document is attached in the Appendix for the convenience of this Court.

statutes allowing the heirs to maintain an action for wrongful death only if the decedent could have maintained an action if death had not ensued. (R. Vol. VI, 1495).

On February 8, 2008, defendant Sterling Fluid Systems (USA) LLC ("Sterling") filed a motion for reconsideration of the court's order denying the motions for summary judgment as to Stoor, Branch and Frasure. (Vol. VI, 1482-1484). In a memorandum decision and order dated March 18, 2008, the trial court reversed its original decision to deny the motion for summary judgment and dismissed the plaintiffs' wrongful death claims. (Vol. VII, 1652). The court explained its rationale for now concluding that the literal omission of the condition precedent rule from Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute was no longer controlling:

[W]hile the Wrongful Death Statute does not expressly contain the condition precedent language found in Lord Campbell's Act, the Idaho Supreme Court interprets IC § 5-311 as if it did contain such language and has consistently and repeatedly required that the Wrongful Death Statute be read "as if it expressly contains the provision, "Whenever the wrongful act would have entitled the person injured to maintain an action if death had not ensued."

(R. Vol. VII, 1651).

Following entry of this order, the trial court entered judgment against the plaintiffs/appellants. (R. Vol. VII, 1697-1700). A notice of appeal was filed by the plaintiffs and a certificate of appeal was issued on May 7, 2008. (R. Vol. VII, 1701-1705). On June 19, 2008, because the original judgment had been misfiled,

the trial court entered a final judgment as to the plaintiffs. (R. Vol. VII, 1720-1723). The order conditionally dismissing the appeal was withdrawn. (R. Vol. VII, 1728).

2. The Adamson Motion for Summary Judgment and Order.

On July 18, 2006, John D. Adamson, individually and in his capacity as personal representative of the Estate of John H. Adamson ("Adamson"), filed a wrongful death complaint in Idaho State District Court in Bannock County. (R. Vol. VIII, 1751- 1783). Adamson alleged that as a result of continuous exposure to defendants' asbestos-containing materials and products his father, John H. Adamson ("decedent), contracted mesothelioma and died from this disease on July 20, 2004. (R. Vol. VIII, 1761).

On September 24, 2007, defendant Sterling Fluid Systems (USA) LLC ("Sterling") filed a motion for final summary judgment alleging that there was no genuine issue of material fact that Adamson's wrongful death claims against the defendant were barred because the decedent's personal injury cause of action had expired in Idaho before his death. (R. Vol. IX, 2134-2141). Other defendants joined in the motion. (R. Vol. X, 2290-2322).

Adamson filed a response to Sterling's motion for summary judgment asserting that his cause of action was timely filed because, pursuant to Idaho's adoption of Lord Campbell's Act from which the wrongful death statute codified

xi

in I.C. §5-311 was derived, a new cause of action based on the same conduct was created. (R. Vol. 10. 2322a – 2322j). On April 9, 2008, the trial court issued a memorandum decision and order granting the defendants' motion for summary judgment that became final and appealable on October 2, 2008. (R. Vol. XI, 2479 – 2489). On October 31, 2008, Adamson filed his notice of appeal. (R. Vol. XI, 2622 - 2629). This Court granted the defendants' motion to consolidate appeals and consolidated Docket No. 35852 with Docket No. 35123 (Docket No. 34124 had been previously consolidated with Docket No. 35123) for purposes of briefing and oral argument. (Order 12/22/2008). (R. Vol. XI, 2635 – 2636).

C. Statement of Facts.

Facts relevant to the issue on appeal are not in dispute. Plaintiff Alene Stoor brought a wrongful death cause of action on behalf of her deceased husband John Stoor alleging that he was continually exposed to the defendants' asbestos containing products at the FMC plant in Pocatello, Idaho from 1958 through 1992. (R. Vol. I, 87-124). (R. Vol. V, 1148-1149). As a result of John Stoor's exposure to asbestos, he developed asbestos-related pleural abnormalities consistent with pneumonoconiosis and pleural thickening of the chest wall. (R. Vol. V, 1148). This diagnosis was made on September 24, 2001 based upon a reading of an August 24, 1991 chest x-ray. (R. Vol. V, 1148). Subsequently, three personal injury actions were filed by John Stoor against various manufacturers of asbestos containing products. (R. Vol. V, 1176-1179). Mr. Stoor died on June 13, 2004. (R. Vol. V, 1119). Less than two years after his death, on June 2, 2006, a wrongful death cause of action was filed on behalf of his estate against the defendants in this case. (R. Vol. V, 1119).

Robert Branch was exposed to the defendants' asbestos containing products from 1955 through 1989 when he was employed at the FMC plant in Pocatello, Idaho. (R. Vol. V, 1149). On July 1, 2003, a chest radiograph revealed that Mr. Branch suffered from chronic interstitial disease (one form of which is asbestosis). (R. Vol. V, 1149-1150). On September 7, 2006, Dr. Alvin Schonfeld read the 2003 chest radiographs of Robert Branch, Jr. and confirmed that there were pleural abnormalities consistent with penumoconiosis (one cause of which is inhalation of dust containing asbestos) and that pleural plaques (evidence of asbestos exposure) were present on July 1, 2003. (R. Vol. V, 1150). Mr. Branch died on July 11, 2005. (R. Vol. V, 1129). A wrongful death claim was asserted on behalf of the Estate of Robert Branch on June 2, 2006. (R. Vol. I, 87-124).

William D. Frasure was exposed to asbestos containing products through his employment at the FMC plant in Pocatello, Idaho from 1953 through 1988. (R. Vol. V, 1138). A consultation report reflected that a chest x-ray taken on August 24, 2000 confirmed that Mr. Frasure had pleural plaques suggestive of asbestos disease. (R. Vol. V, 1138). Mr. Frasure died on February 17, 2006 and his widow filed a wrongful death claim on June 2, 2006. (R. Vol. I, 87-124).

On March 8, 2002, John H. Adamson was diagnosed with mesothelioma. (R. Vol. X, 2143). During his lifetime Mr. Adamson filed lawsuits in Mississippi and Georgia involving his exposure to asbestos. (R. Vol. X, 2144). He died on July 20, 2004. (R. Vol. X, 2144). Less than two years after his death, a wrongful death lawsuit was filed by John D. Adamson, his son, on behalf of his father's estate. (R. Vol. X, 2144).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

"In reviewing the district court's decision on a motion for summary judgment, the standard of review is whether there are any genuine issues of material fact, and, if not, whether the prevailing party was entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." *Sacred Heart Med. Ctr. V. Boundary County*, 138 Idaho 534, 535, 66 P.3d 238, 239 (Idaho 2003). If the evidence shows that there are no disputed issues of fact, what remains is a question of law, over which the appellate court exercises free review. *Id.; see also, Thornock v. Boise Indep. Sch. Dist. No. 1*, 115 Idaho 466, 470, 767 P.2d 1241, 1245 (1988), *cert. denied*, 490 U.S. 1068, 109 S.Ct. 2069, 104 L.Ed.2d 634 (1989)(conclusions of law are subject to a *de novo* review by this Court). Constitutional issues are purely questions of law over which this Court exercises free review. *Harris v. State Dept. of Health & Welfare*, 123 Idaho 295, 297, 847 P.2d 1156, 1158 (1992).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

I. The Trial Court Erred in Granting the Defendants' Motions for Summary Judgment on the Statute of Limitations in the Wrongful Death Claims.

A. The Trial Court Erred in Concluding that the Condition Precedent Rule Must Be Read Into Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute.

1. The trial courts' equivocal orders should be reversed.

The trial courts erred in granting summary judgment to the defendants and in finding that the accrual date of the decedents' wrongful death causes of action started on the date each decedent was diagnosed with the asbestosrelated disease and not on the date of death. The trial courts, while granting summary judgment in the defendants' favor, recognized that there were substantial grounds for difference of opinion concerning the application of the condition precedent rule to Idaho's wrongful death statute. This is evidenced by the equivocal nature of the courts' decisions.

In fact, the trial court in the *Castorena* case initially ruled that the condition precedent rule *did not* apply to Idaho's wrongful death cause of action. In the *Memorandum Decision and Order* dated January 28, 2008, in the *Castorena* case, Judge Peter D. McDermott found that Idaho's wrongful death cause of action was separate and distinct from an action for personal injury and, as such, there was no condition precedent bar to the plaintiffs' claims and denied the defendants' motion for summary judgment. (R. Vol.

1

VII, 1641-1658 at 1648). (App. Ex. "A"). Turning to the plain language of the statute, the trial court gave effect to the statute as written stating:

It is instructive that the [Wrongful Death Statute] makes no mention and provides no provision for limitations on the wrongful death actions. Furthermore, a clear reading of the words and considering that the Idaho Legislature created another statute to address personal injury claims, this Court finds that the Wrongful Death Statute is an act separate from a personal injury cause of action. . . . As such, there is no condition precedent bar to the Wrongful Death Plaintiffs' claims here.

(R. Vol. VII, 1649) (emphasis added). In denying the defendants' summary judgment order, the trial court in *Castorena* was also persuaded by the fact that Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute did not contain the specific proviso allowing heirs to maintain an action for wrongful death only whenever the wrongful act would have entitled the person injured to maintain an action if death had not ensued. (*See id.*) (citations omitted).

The court reconsidered this decision at the request of the defendants and issued another memorandum order and decision citing case law that "implied" a condition precedent rule in Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute and dismissed the plaintiffs' wrongful death claims. (R. Vol. VII, 1641-1658 at 1651). The trial court noted that while "this Court remains convinced that the plain language of the Wrongful Death Statute should be followed and is opposed to judicial activism that assumes the true intent of the Legislature, this Court is nonetheless required to follow established precedent." (R. Vol. VII, 1641-1658 at 1652).

In the memorandum decision and order granting summary judgment dated April 9, 2008, in the Adamson case, the trial court acknowledged that this Court in *Chapman* ruled that death began the tolling in a wrongful death cause of action. (R. Vol. XI, 2479-2494 at 2485). However, the court determined that because there was a "tendency" to construe the wrongful death statute with the historical practice of requiring the decedent to have a valid cause of action on the date of death and because the "majority" of the relevant cases "seem to apply" the condition precedent rule, the court would do the same. (R. Vol. XI, 2485). Summary judgment was granted in favor of the defendant and judgment entered accordingly dismissing the plaintiffs' case. (R. Vol. XI, 2489, 2459). The tentative and gualified nature of both decisions serves only to underscore the error inherent in the ultimate decision to dismiss the plaintiffs' claims.

2. The condition precedent rule does not square with the plain language of Idaho's Wrongful Death Statute nor with this Court's clear holding in *Chapman* that a wrongful death cause of action accrues on the date of death.

To reach the erroneous conclusion that Idaho's wrongful death statute contained a condition precedent, the trial courts had to ignore principles of statutory construction and a decision by this Court that held, without

3

restriction, that a cause of action for wrongful death accrued on the date of death. See Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc., 105 Idaho 785, 673 P.2d 385 (1983).⁵ Construction of Idaho's wrongful death act must begin by putting the law in historical context. Both at common law prior to 1846 and in this jurisdiction prior to 1888, the heirs of a person whose death was caused by the wrongful act of another could not maintain a civil action for damages. "At common law if the victim of a tort died before he recovered a judgment, the victim's right of action also died." Evans v. Twin Falls County, 118 Idaho 210, 215, 796 P.2d 87, 92 (Idaho 1990) citing Prosser & Keeton on Torts, § 125(a) (5th ed.1984). Nor could such right of action could be continued by a representative of the decedent. Vulk v. Haley, 112 Idaho 855, 857, 736 P.2d 1309, 1311 (Idaho 1987). The common law required that, with the death of either party to a civil action, "the action is dead" and could be revived only by bringing a new action. *Moon v. Bullock*, 65 Idaho 594, 151 P.2d 765, 767 (Idaho 1944) overruled on other grounds by Doggett v. Boiler Eng'g & Supply Co., 92 Idaho 888 (1970).

In an attempt to ameliorate the harsh effects of common law rules, the English Parliament enacted the Fatal Accidents Act in 1846, now more commonly known as Lord Campbell's Act, which granted wrongful death

⁵ Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc., 105 Idaho 785, 673 P.2d 385 (1983) will be sometimes referred to as "Chapman."

damages to survivors. The common law became the law of the State of Idaho, except so far as it was "not repugnant to, or inconsistent with, the constitution or laws of the United States" and in all cases not provided for in Idaho law, "is the rule of decision in all courts of this state." I.C. § 73-116 (1995). Consequently, absent a specific statutory enactment, wrongful death claims could not be brought in Idaho.

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