UIdaho Law

Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law
Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

10-1-2009

Castorena v. General Elec. Respondent's Brief Dckt.
35123

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

Fourth, the Plaintiffs' statutory construction argument misstates Idaho law regarding the
interpretation of statutes.'' It is m e that statutory interpretation begins with the literal words of
the statute, and that the language must be given its plain, obvious and rational meaning. Senator,

Inc. v. Ada County, 138 Idaho 566, 570,67 P.3d 45,49 (2003). However, Plaintiffs ignore the
remainder of the rule. which states:
Our goal is to give effect to the purpose of the statute and the legislative intent in
enacting it, which may be implied from the language used or inferred on
grounds o f aolicv or reasonableness.

Id. at 570 (emphasis added); Thomson v. City ofLewiston, 137 Idaho 473,478,50 P.3d 488,493
(2002) ("The legislature's intent in enacting a statute may be implied from the language used or
inferred on the grounds of policy or reasonableness."); Crawford v. Dept. of Corrections, 133
Idaho 633,635,991 P.2d 358,360 (1999);'~lackv.Reynolds, 109 Idaho 277,280,707 P.2d 388,
391 (1985), overruled on other grounds by Stewart v. Rice, 120 Idaho 504,817 P.2d 170 (1991);

see Hayden Lake Fire Prot. Dist. v. Alcorn, 141 Idaho 388,398-99, 111 P.3d 73,83-84 (2005)
("we examine not only the literal words of the statute, but also the reasonableness of proposed
constructions, the public policy behind the statute, and its legislative history"); Sumpter v

Holland Realty, Inc, 140 Idaho 349,351,93 P.3d 680,682 (2004).
Plaintiffs also argue that "changes in the common law by the adoption of a statute are
not to be presumed, but must be clearly intended before they will be given effect." (App. Br.
18). This argument is directly contradicted by I. C. § 73-102, which provides that this rule "has
no application to these compiled laws." Moreover, Plaintiffs' argument makes no sense. The
wrongful death statute clearly changed the common law, which the Plaintiffs argue did not
previously include a wrongful death right of action, Strict construction of the statute would leave
that common law rejection of claims in place, rather than add an additional right to pursue
expired claims.
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There is nothing in this Court's earlier interpretations of I.C. 5 5-3 11 that violates the
.rules of statutory interpretation. As explained above, it is reasonable to conclude that the express
words "wrongful act or neglect" in the statute require the condition precedent rule. However, , if
these literal words are not sufficient, the goal of this Court is to give effect to the purpose of the
statute and the legislature's intent in enacting it, which may be inferred on the grounds of policy
or reasonableness. This Court has repeatedly concluded that the purpose of the statute is met by
restricting the wrongful death cause of action to heirs whose decedents had viable causes of
action at the time of death.
I;ifh, Plaintiffs ignore this Court's ruling that "The Idaho legislature, in enacting I.C. 9 5-

311, adopted the substance of Lord Campbell's Act." Bevan, 117 Idaho at 1040,793 P.2d at
713. This Court has concluded that the Idaho legislature intended to adopt the entirety of Lord
Campbell's Act, including the condition precedent language. Helgeson, 54 Idaho at 678,34 P.2d
at 961. This Court has already determined that the Idaho legislature intended to include this
condition precedent language as part of its enactment of I. C. § 5-3 11. Plaintiffs make no
argument against this Court's determination on this point.

Sixth, Plaintiffs' argument ignores that the Idaho legislature has been aware of the
condition precedent interpretation for nearly the entire 20th century. The Idaho legislature has
not seen fit in the 105 years since 1904 to take any action to change this interpretation:
Furthermore, the Idaho legislature, dating from the time of Sprouse v. Magee, 46
Idaho 622,269 P. 993 (1928), through the present, has been and continues to be
aware of this Court's interpretation and application of LC. 9 5-311 and has not
found it necessary to enact 1e'~islationto change or modify the wrongful death
recovery law as interpreted by the decisions of this Court.
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Bevan, 117 Idaho at 1040,793 P.2d at 713 (emphasis added).
For all of these reasons, Plaintiffs' statutory interpretation argument fails. This Court has
reasonably found that the legislature did not intend to allow heirs to pursue claims that the
decedent could not have pursued. Plaintiffs have given no valid reason to question this Court's
historical and well-reasoned interpretation of the statute.
4.

Plaintiffs' Reliance on Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers Is Wrong.

In Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc., 105 Idaho 785,673 P.2d 385 ("Chapman"),
this Court correctly decided the straightforward issue that a wrongful death cause of action
accrues at the time of death.I6 In Chapman, the injury occurred one month before the death of
the decedent, so the decedent had a valid cause of action at the time of death. Id., 105 Idaho at
786,673 P.2d at 386. Because the decedent had a valid cause of action at the time of death, the
condition precedent rule was not an issue in the case.
Nonetheless, Plaintiffs base their appeal almost entirely on the assertion that Chapman
decided the issue in this case. There is no merit to this argument. Plaintiffs confuse the
condition precedent rule with the statute of limitations for a wrongful death action. These are
two separate and distinct issues. A wrongful death claimant must bring the wrongful death
action within two years from the death of the decedent, but the claimant must also satisfy the
l6 Plaintiffs' attempt to imply that the condition precedent rule was overruled by
Chapman v. Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc., 105 Idaho 785,673 P.2d 385. That is obviously untrue.
Chapman itself confirmed "the rule that heirs can bring an action only if the deceased could
have." Id., 105 Idaho at 787,673 P.2d at 387. Moreover, this Court has confirmed and applied
the condition precedent rule in at least three separate cases since Chapman was decided in 1983.
Woodburn v. Manco Products, 137 Idaho 502, 506, 50 P.3d 997; Turpen v. Granieri, 133 Idaho
at 247,985 P.2d 669; Bevan v. Vassar Farms, Inc., 117 Idaho 1038,793 P.2d 71 1.
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condition precedent that decedent had a valid claim at the time of death. To maintain a wrongful
death action, the wrongful death heir must satisfl both of these requirements.
Plaintiffs' attempt to confuse Chapman is not new. The wrongful death plaintiffs in

Adams v. Armstrong World Ind., Inc., 596 F. Supp. 1407 (D. Idaho 1984), a case factually
identical to this case, tried the same argument. Adams, 596 F. Supp. at 1412, a f d in part, rev'd

on other grounds 773 F.2d 248 (9th Cir. 1985), on remand, 664 F.Supp. 463 @. Idaho 1987),
rev'don other grounds, 847 F.2d 589 (9th Cir. 1988) ("Adarns"). A year after Chapman, the
Federal District Court found:
This Court finds that, if faced with the question, the Idaho court would apply the
condition precedent rule to the statute o f limitations situation, as it has done in
situations involving conlributory or comparative negligence.

Adams, 596 F. Supp. at 1412, 1414 (emphasis added).17
Plaintiffs repeatedly attempt to mischaracterize the issue on appeal in this case as a
question of when a wrongful death action accrues, which was the only issue addressed in
The wrongful death plaintiffs appealed this decision to the Ninth Circuit. The Ninth
Circuit attempted to certify the question to this Court. Waters v. Armstrong World Ind, Inc., 773
F.2d 248 (9th Cir. 1985). This Court declined to address the question, stating "its prior decisions
'are sufficient to give guidance for the determination of the Idaho law involved in this action ..."'
Adams v. Armstrong World Ind., Inc., 664 F.Supp. 463,464 (D. Idaho 1987); Adams v.
Armstrong World Ind., Inc., 847 F.2d 589, 590 (9th Cir. 1988) (same). As a result, "[iln an
unpublished opinion filed on May 5, 1986, the Ninth Circuit held that [the District of Idaho] had
properly ruled on the questions." Adams v. Armstrong World Ind., Inc., 664 F. Supp. at 464.
The Ninth Circuit agreed with the District Court, which held that the condition precedent rule
bars expired claims. Plaintiffs interpret this history to mean that there is no condition precedent
requirement. (App. Br. at 15-16). This is simply untrue. On the contrary, both the District
Court and the Ninth Circuit dismissed the claims based on the condition precedent rule, after the
Idaho Supreme Court referred them to its prior decisions on the subject. The Adams case history
provides absolutely no support for Plaintiffs' appeal.
l7
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Chapman. (App. Brf at 1,3,4, 10, 11, 15, 16, 17). The Adams decision explains why the
Chapman issue is not relevant:
Plaintiffs argue that the Idaho Supreme Court in Chapman, supra, either
completely or partially overruled the condition precedent defense in Idaho.
.
The question certified to the Idaho Supreme Court by this Court was "'whether,
in a wrongful death action, the statute of limitations begins to runfrom the
date of death or the date of the injuryfrom which death resulted." 673 P.2d at
386. The court held that the statute began to runfrom the date of death. That
rule is not in dispute in the present case.

..

Adams, 596 F. Supp. at 1412 (emphasis added). The difference is that, in Chapman, the
decedent's claim was not time-barred before death:

In Chaprnai~,the deceased (lied witlzitz otre motrtlz oftlze (lute of Iris itzitru)'ntzd
tlrzts Itad a valid catte of actiott at the (late o f his decttlr. at least valid in regard
to the statute of limitations. In contrast, in the present case, the deceased died
over five years after his last exposure to asbestos and thus, at the time of his
death, his cause of action was time-barred.
Adams, 596 F. Supp. at 1414 (emphasis added). The same distinction applies here." The
following table demonstrates the differences between the decedents in this case, the decedent in

Adams, and the decedent in Chapman.

Any broader construction would be relying on dicta. Adams, 596 F. Supp. at 1414
("Though the issue was not before the Chapman court, it nevertheless made some remarks to the
effect that the condition precedent rule would not apply to the situation presented there. Because
these remarks are clearly dicta, however, they are not binding upon this or any other court")
(emphasis added). Idaho courts are not hound by dicta. See Petersen v. State, 87 Idaho 361,393
P.2d 585 (1964); Long v. State Insurance Fund, 60 Idaho 257,90 P.2d 973 (1939); Bashore v.
Adolf; 41 Idaho 84,238 P. 534 (1925).

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF

. More than Two Years

Robert Branch. Jr.

William D. Frasure

7/1/2003

from Accrual
711 112005
More than Two Years
from Accrual
211712006
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from Accrual
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8/25/2000

John H. Adamson
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Decedent in Adams
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Less than Two Years from
Death
6/2/2006
Less than Two Years from
Death

711812006
Less than Two Years from
Death
91291198 1
Less than Two Years from
Death
912911981
More than Two Years from
Injury, Less than Two
Years from Death

The facts in this case are clearly different from Chapman. The four decedents in this
case, like the decedent in Adams, could not have filed personal injury lawsuits at the times of
their respective deaths. In contrast, the decedent in Chapman had a valid cause of action fot
personal injuries at the time of his death. The decedent in Chapman fulfilled the condition
precedent, where the decedents in this case and in Adams did not. The current case therefore
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deals with expired claims, while Chapman did not. Since Chapman did not involve an expired
claim, it does not contradict the rule that the condition precedent doctrine bars expired clai~ns.'~
5.

Other Jurisdictions Apply the Condition Precedent Rule.

This Court's condition precedent rule is not unique. Other states have wrongful death
statutes similar to Idaho's statute, in that they do not expressly contain the condition precedent
language of Lord Campbell's Act. Courts in those states have followed this Court's approach.
For example, Utah's wrongful death statute does not contain any condition precedent language.
In spite of this, in Jensen v. IHC Hospitals, Inc., 944 P.2d 327, the Utah Supreme Court ruled
that the condition precedent rule barred the wrongful death plaintiffs from pursuing an expired
claim. See also Francis v. Southern Pac. Co., 162 F.2d 8 13 (10" Cir. 1947), a f d 333 US. 445

(1948); and Miller v. Gastronomy, Inc., 110 P.3d 144 (Utah 2005). Similarly, Washington's
wrongful death statute does not contain any condition precedent language. Nevertheless, the
Supreme Courl of Washington has held that the decedent must have had a valid cause of action
at the time of death:
In accord with the great weight of authority, this court has heldthat the action
accrues at the time of death, and that the statute of limitations then begins to
run. []
" Plaintiffs also attempt to use Chapman to attack the 1934 decision of the Court in
Helgeson v. Powell, 54 Idaho 667,34 P.2d 957. (App. Br. 16-17). Plaintiffs mistakenly assert
that the defendants in Helgeson "asserted that the accrual date of the wrongful death cause of
action was limited by the date of the injury causing dcath." (App. Br. 16). That is not correct.
The action in Helgeson was brought well within any limitations periods. Helgeson has nothing
to do with a statute of limitations issue, or with accrual dates. Instead, the heirs in Helgeson
were benefited by the Court's rejection of the contention that explicit condition precedent
language was necessary in order for heirs to recover on a surety bond. Id. at 678,34 P.2d at 961.

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF

The rule, however, is subject to a well recognized limitation, namely, at the time
of death there must be a subsistinp cause o f action in the deceased.
Grant v. Fisher Flouring Mills Co., 44 P.2d 193, 195 (Wash. 1935) (emphasis added); see also
Johnson v. Otorneier,45 Wn. 2d 419,275 P.2d 723 (1954).
Courts have also interpreted several federal statutes to include the condition precedent
rule, even though those statutes do not contain an express condition precedent provision. In the
case of Flynn v. N Y., NH. & H R . Co., 283 U.S. 53 (1931), Justice Oliver Wendell I-Iolmes
explained:
Obviously Flynn's right of action was barred, but it is argued that the right on
behalf of the widow and children is distinct; that their cause of action could not
arise until Flynn's death, and that therefore the two years did not begin to run
until [the date of death]. But the argument comes too late. It is established that
the present right, although not strictly representative, is derivative and
dependent upon the continuance of a right in the injured employee at the time
of his death. . . The running of the two years from the time when his cause of
action accrued extinguishes [the cause of action for wrongful deathi.

Flynn, 283 U.S. at 56 (emphasis added); see also Burns v. Martin Transport Lines, Inc., 207
F.Supp. 276,278 n. 5 (D.C.N.Y. 1962) (as decedent's claims were already barred at the time of
death, heirs had no valid wrongful death action); Meth v. A.H Bull & Co., 2000 WL 1211149
(Del. Super. Ct. 2000) (heirs' wrongful death claim was barred, even though Jones Act did not
contain condition precedent language, where decedent's personal injury claim expired prior to
death).
Many other states have followed the condition precedent rule to bar expired claims.
Based on its survey of cases, the Idaho Federal District court concluded that the condition
precedent bar is the "dominant rule," the "majority rule," the "most sound" rule, and the rule
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followed by the "most recent cases." Adams v. Armstrong World Industries, Inc., 596 F. Supp. at
1414. The following are some of these cases: Edwards v. Fogarty, 962 P.2d at 882 ("The clear
majority rule is that survivors are precluded from bringing a wrongful death action where the
deceased does not have a viable malpractice claim at the time of his death."); Russell v.

Ingersoll-Rand Co., 841 S.W.2d at 348 ("If a wrongful death action exists, it accrues, not when
the decedent was injured, but at his death, and the limitations period on that action begins to run
at death. But if a wrongful death action does not exist because the decedent could not maintain
an action in his own right immediately prior to his death, for whatever reason, then no wrongful

death action ever accrues"); Mason v. Gerin Corp., 647 P.2d at 1345 ("where the injured party
could not have brought an action for his personal injuries because the statute of limitations had

run against his claim prior to his death, a wrongful death action cannot be maintained"); Lumber/
v Village ofSummil, 433 N.E.2d 1016, 1019 (Illinois, 1982) ("We further conclude that since the
decedent in the case at bar was not entitled to maintain an action and recover damages for his
injury at the time of his death, because the two-year personal injury statute of limitations had run,
his administrator cannot now maintain this action for wrongful death."); Curtis v. Quality Floors,

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